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TREASURER’S REPORT
AlEHE

I have the pleasure of presenting the financial report
of Lingnan University for the year ended 30 June
2023:

OVERVIEW

The financial year under review was the first year of
the 2022-2025 funding triennium of the University
Grants Committee (UGC). The University has been
ranked second in the world for “Quality Education”
in the Times Higher Education Impact Ranking 2023
and has maintained a top three for four consecutive
years. This international recognition has proven
Lingnan’s excellence as a global leader in Quality
Education.

The University has achieved favorable results in
bidding for research projects from the Research
Grants Council, with a record of 42 projects and a
total funding of $20.8 million, representing a 30%
increase compared to last year.

In response to the increasing demand from the wider
community, the University has rented one and a half
floors of a commercial building located within a one-
minute walk from the Prince Edward MTR station,
which started to host classes in September 2022.
In anticipation of the continued growth in student
numbers, the University has also planned to set up
another learning hub at the M+ Museum Tower in
September 2023.
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OVERALL OPERATING RESULTS AND
FINANCIAL POSITION

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the University
recorded a surplus of $196.9 million (2021/22: a
deficit of $74.8 million). As of 30 June 2023, the net
assets of the University rose by 11% to $2,061.8
million (2021/22: $1,865.4 million).

The University recorded a total income of $1,336.0
million for the year (2021/22: $934.8 million),
representing an increase of $401.2 million or 43%
compared to last year. The overall increase inincome
was primarily attributed to a surge in Interest and
Investment Income of $193.3 million, an increase
in Tuition, Programmes and Other fees of $120.7
million, and an increase in Government Subventions
of $60.0 million.

On the expenditure side, the University recorded
an increase of $129.5 million or 13% (2022/23:
$1,139.1 million, 2021/22: $1,009.6 million).

INCOME ANALYSIS
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COMPARISON OF INCOME DISTRIBUTIONS

BETWEEN 2022/2023 AND 2021/2022
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EXPENDITURE ANALYSIS
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COMPARISON OF EXPENDITURE DISTRIBUTIONS

BETWEEN 2022/2023 AND 2021/2022
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RESULTS BY SEGMENTS

The University’s operations can be broadly divided
into two segments, namely UGC-Funded Activities
and Non-UGC-Funded Activities, and their financial
results for 2022/23 are highlighted as follows:

UGC-Funded Activities

The income derived from and expenditure spent on
UGC-Funded Activities were $795.9 million (2021/22:
$697.3 million) and $751.7 million (2021/22: $691.1
million) respectively, accounting for 60% (2021/22:
75%) of the total income and 66% (2021/22: 68%)
of the total expenditure of the University.

The increase of $98.6 million in income was mainly
due to the increase in Government Subventions
and Tuition Fees brought by the higher number of
students, as well as the increase in Interest and
Investment Income resulting from higher interest
rates in 2022/23.
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There was an increase in expenditure of $60.6
million, mainly attributed to higher staff costs under
Instruction and Research resulting from new hires,
pay-trend adjustments and merit increments.
This segment recorded a surplus of $44.3 million
(2021/22: $6.2 million).

Capital and Alterations, Additions and Improvements
(AA&I) Projects

During the year, the UGC approved three new AA&I
projects with a total value of $58.6 million (2021/22:
$61.9 million) for various campus improvement
works. Total expenditure on the Capital and AA&I
Projects for the year was $35.4 million (2021/22:
$36.7 million) with all projects spending within their
respective budgets.

Non-UGC-Funded Activities

Lingnan Institute of Further Education (LIFE)

In view of the continual decline in the number
of secondary school students, the Council has
approved at its meeting of 24 April 2023 integrating
LIFE into the University Proper to become a self-
financed academic unit offering sub-degree and
lifelong learning programmes.

In 2022/23, LIFE’s associate degree programmes
had 268 (2021/22: 244) students while its higher
diploma, diploma, and diploma Yi Jin programmes
had a total of 557 (2021/22: 842) students. The two
most popular programmes remained the Higher
Diploma in Sports Coaching and Leadership with an
intake of 96 (2021/22: 71) and the Higher Diploma
in Early Childhood Education with an intake of 39
(2021/22: 120).

Although LIFE recorded a decrease in student
numbers, it achieved a surplus of $12.1 million for
the year (2021/22: $8.2 million) through effective
cost control by making better use of part-time
teachers. The total income and expenditure of LIFE
were $62.8 million (2021/22: $72.9 million) and
$50.7 million (2021/22: $64.7 million), respectively,
accounting for 5% of the total income (2021/22:
8%) and 4% of the total expenditure (2021/22: 6%)
of the University.
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Self-financed Programmes

This sub-segment encompasses all the taught
postgraduate programmes and self-financed
undergraduate programmes of the University, which
had a total of 2,411 (2021/22: 1,588) full-time-
equivalent students. During the year, the University
introduced one Master’'s Programme and two
undergraduate Programmes. In 2022/23, the Master
of Accountancy and Bachelor of Social Sciences
(Honours) in Business Psychology were the most
popular programmes with a student intake of 124
and 112 (2021/22: 121 and 60), respectively.

The income generated by this sub-segment was
$387.6 million (2021/22: $258.6 million) and the
expenditure incurred was $250.8 million (2021/22:
$172.1 million), accounting for 29% (2021/22: 28%)
of the total income and 22% (2021/22: 17%) of the
total expenditure of the University. This sub-segment
recorded a surplus of $136.8 million (2021/22: $86.5
million) for the year.

Donations

The total income for the year recorded under this
sub-segment was $40.7 million (2021/22: $8.2
million), while the amount utilized during the year
for supporting various activities was $57.4 million
(2021/22: $55.5 million). The increase in income was
mainly due to a decrease of $21.0 million or 79%
in Interest and Investment Loss. This sub-segment
recorded a deficit of $16.8 million (2021/22: a deficit
of $47.3 million) for the year. The University is very
grateful for the generosity of the donors, including
alumni, friends, and various organizations. Their
donations are a sign of trust in the University and
have enabled the University to deliver the best
learning experience to students as well as achieve
academic excellence.
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Other Activities

This sub-segment primarily includes student
hostels, investment activities of the non-UGC funds
and other ancillary services. In 2022/23, although
the economy showed signs of recovery after the
pandemic, interest rates remained on the rising
track. The investment markets, especially the local
Hong Kong market, remained soft. The University
recorded a mild Interest and Investment Income of
$8.1 million for the year, a significant increase of
$141.9 million or 106% from a loss of $133.8 million
last year. As of 30 June 2023, the aggregate market
value of the portfolios managed by investment
managers was $734.1 million (2021/22: $732.2
million), representing a marginal annual return of
0.2% (2021/22: -15.6%). The market value of the
portfolio managed by the University on that date
was $109.5 million (2021/22: $124.5 million), with
a dividend-adjusted return of -5.4% (2021/22:
-11.6%) while the Hang Seng Index recorded a loss
of 13.5% in the same period.

OUTLOOK

The socio-economic and political landscapes are
being reshaped continuously by digital innovations.
As a leading liberal arts research university providing
quality education in the world, the University is
committed to optimizing liberal arts education in the
digital era by raising students’ digital literacy through
embedding information technology-related training
in the curriculum and extra-curricular activities.

To support the development needs of the University,
such as enhancing teaching and learning, pioneering
a curriculum reform in the digital age, and driving
research excellence, the University has planned to
seek funding from the Government as well as utilize
its non-UGC reserves to construct a new building
on campus to provide suitable space for hosting
various activities.
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The University is in good financial shape and well-
prepared to face the diverse challenges under the
unpredictable economy. The University will continue
to enhance its resource management and implement
effective cost-control measures to ensure its long-
term financial sustainability.

Ms CHEUNG Marn Kay Katherine

Treasurer
Hong Kong, 30 October 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE COUNCIL OF LINGNAN UNIVERSITY

(established under the Lingnan University Ordinance)

B BB AERNEG RS

(REBERARRBIAL)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Lingnan
University (the “University”) set out on pages 14
to 94, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2023, and the statement
of income and expenditure, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in fund balances and the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the
University as at 30 June 2023, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Lingnan University Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“‘HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the University
in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE FINANCIAL REPORT

The Council of the University is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Financial Report,
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE UNIVERSITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Council of the University is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Lingnan University
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council
is responsible for assessing the University’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Council of the University either intends
to liquidate the University or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

FISRMBREAEMEE

REGHUEMESAR - RMES T
RPBHREANESR - ENBRIBRER LR
(RS2 G i

HPEMBRROBREL VREEMES -
PITRN % E S B BRI AR ER S

A
af ©

EAEBRMYPBRENEFS  BRANEERE
EEMER - EUBET  EEEMEEES
BB SRR A PR BIE P AR AIE R
FHEEXABREUFFEERERRANE
e ERBAZHITOIE  REMFBRE
ESFEEAHEREL - RMIBEREZE
BomEh|  RIYAEARE -

REGMMBRRBKIENTE

RESAABREBETLSTHAGRMAE
BUBHREEL) R ERKXEGRIDRERE
EMAMEBRVHREK - THRESR RS
EUHBHRER VRN FAEBR AR ERNE
HHEAHRRAFFFBOAIEH AT

EREVBHRRE  REGABN LERAE
FELENEEN  WHEERIBR TR RS
REFENER  URERAKELERSTE
o BIRESAEREMAEERIIF L
2 RREEMERNERER -



The Council of the University is assisted by the
Audit Committee in discharging its responsibilities
for overseeing the University’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 20
of the Lingnan University Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
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e  Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the University’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Council of the University.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the
Council’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the University’s ability to
continue as agoing concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the University to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 October 2023

BPEREZZESRRER @ SARMEN
BABEBEIENHEREREHBEN - Wb
BEA A AR RS ER B LIEN
FRIBRAMEMEIR - UREERNIERT -
A3 BERR B SRR B ARIE 4 e 1 SREVAE R BV B
#IE)E °

RXERTENF P
HEGHED

BB
2023410 A 30 H
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
W F/EE2023FE6 B30 HEE

Income

Government Subventions

Tuition, Programmes and
Other Fees

Interest and Investment
Income/(Loss)

Donations and Benefactions

Auxiliary Services

Other Income

Expenditure

Learning and Research
Instruction and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General

Premises and Related Expenses
Student and General Education

Services
Other Activities

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year

WA

2%  RER
Hitbw &

MERKRE
WA (EER)

BN AR

B B AR

HABWA

X

BRI
BERTR
ElEEE
PREFRE
HA S RS

BB E
EER-BRXE
REREEXH
BAER-RHA

AR

Hith’5 8

REFRE/ (B4

Notes

BfaE

10

1"

2023 2022

HK$ & 7T HK$ /&7t
(Note FizE 4) (Note FizE 4)
599,004,590 538,994,753
598,281,454 477,629,580
37,306,890 (155,981,184)
46,378,984 34,966,999
43,061,587 33,056,940
12,030,619 6,170,802
1,336,064,124 934,837,890
554,184,956 486,616,067
40,467,701 38,763,432
62,758,475 48,514,397
70,118,005 63,119,806
110,752,444 95,559,974
172,328,069 163,920,922
127,438,576 110,920,650
1,106,513 2,216,737

1,139,154,739

1,009,631,985

196,909,385

(74,794,095)




LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

PHEINEREE 2023FE6 A30HEE

Notes 2023 2022
M¥=E HK$ %7t HK$ &7t
Restricted Funds Deficit ZIRHIE S A 12 (30,658,924) (69,364,861)
Other Funds Surplus/(Deficit) HihBeRBeR/ (B4l 13 227,568,309 (5,429,234)
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year TEEREER/ (B4 196,909,385 (74,794,095)
Other Comprehensive Loss FRBEETEEHIIAKRTE
which will not be reclassified *WHEMZEER
to the Statement of Income
and Expenditure in Subsequent
Periods
Changes in Fair Value of Equity FFAZEWEGER 2 EFREN 12 (560,866) (1,198,402)
Investments Designated at AREBEES
Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income
Other Comprehensive Loss AEEHMEZHEEE
for the Year (560,866) (1,198,402)
Total Comprehensive Income/ AEEFHE2EWE/ (FE)
(Loss) for the Year 196,348,519 (75,992,497)
Transfers (from)/to: R (8) /&
Restricted Funds ZREES 12 (31,219,790) (70,563,263)
Other Funds HthES 13 227,568,309 (5,429,234)
196,348,519 (75,992,497)

2022/23 LINGNAN UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL REPORT ° Bi##keE
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

BTk 3k 202346 A 30 A

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Right-of-use Assets

Equity Investments Designated
at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Prepayments

Current Assets

Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments
and Deposits

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of more than Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accruals
Provision for Employee Benefits
Deferred Income

Lease Liabilities within One Year

Net Current Assets

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Provision for Employee Benefits
Loan Repayable after One Year
- Secured
Lease Liabilities More than One Year

Deferred Capital Fund

Net Assets

FRBEE
RE -~ RIERET
EREEE

EERUQAEEFAZH

Wik o EmRE

FAERTR

RBEE

LR RBER AR R

HERMEE
FEURBRSR - TR BRFR
KRS
FRHARR=@EA
HE R
RERRETEEY

REBAE

P BRAR R TR E A
RERFERE
EEWA
—FANEEEE

BERBEE

REERRBESR

FRBEE
BEENEE
—FREENEN
- BEA
RR—FHHESE

EEEFES

FEE

Notes

BfEE

15
16

17

17

18 (a)

18 (b)

19
20
22
15

20
21

15

23

2023
HK$ &7t

1,296,193,572
29,806,267
5,682,852

3,089,696

2022
HK$ &7t

1,207,914,284
8,729,083
6,243,718

2,640,440

1,334,772,387

1,225,527,525

854,280,896

45,373,097

1,617,5678,352

867,062,334

24,461,557

1,246,190,587

29,175,289 15,155,108
2,446,407,634 2,152,869,586
396,462,643 267,472,858
60,699,184 59,208,655
252,816,144 278,627,992
6,338,626 1,250,079
716,316,597 606,559,584

1,730,091,037

1,5646,310,002

3,064,863,424 2,771,837,527
15,630,828 13,090,306
27,431,326 27,431,326
23,929,557 7,613,745
66,991,711 48,135,377
936,084,515 858,263,471

2,061,787,198

1,865,438,679




LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

(Continued)
SRR 2023456 A30H (48)

Notes 2023 2022
B &R HK$ 7B T HKS %7t
Operational Funds BELED
Restricted Funds SREES 12 617,812,970 630,362,456
UGC Funds HESEHS 13 379,047,611 338,022,037
Other Reserves HibfEE 13 1,064,926,617 897,054,186
Total Funds wES 2,061,787,198 1,865,438,679

Mr YAO Cho Fai Andrew, BBS, JP #k18 $E K F 4+
Chairman of the Council IRE € £ &

Ms CHEUNG Marn Kay Katherine & 2 7+
Treasurer A]f&

Professor S. Joe QIN Z /I 2%
President 1

Mr WOO Chun Tung lan SRR 554
Director of Finance 817 &

2022/23 LINGNAN UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL REPORT * Bf#3RE 17
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

e mEXREE2023F6 A30HEE

Notes
MiEE
Cash Flows from Operating BETHNESRE
Activities
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year REERER/ (B4
Adjustments for: AR
Depreciation of Property, Plantand K& - RIEREM ZITE 14
Equipment
Depreciation of Right-of-use FRAEEEZITE 15
Assets

HZREEAES
MERKE (BA) /B1R 7

Transfer to Deferred Capital Fund

Interest and Investment (Income)/
Loss

Interest Expense in respect of
Lease Liabilities

Net Loss on Disposal of Items of
Property, Plant and Equipment

HEaENHERRNEXH 11.1
EERSRER
BMIBEFEE

KRN ARR

Increase in Accounts Receivable,

Prepayments and Deposits BNERARZRE
Increase in Provision for EIESRAIEE
Employee Benefits
Increase in Accounts Payable EINFETERFA R
and Accruals JEIREA

(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred CRA) /1B hNIEAEU A

Income
Cash Flows generated from BEMEBZREESRE
Operations
Interest Element of Lease Liabilities HEESENFR
Net Cash Inflow from Operating BEIINTIEHERAE

Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities R&EENRESRE

Purchases of Investments BARE

Purchases of ltems of BERESRERSEBMIER 14
Property, Plant and Equipment

Proceeds from Disposal of ltems of EBRE®RER
Property, Plant and Equipment ESHITE B R

Increase in Time Deposits, ENERZHARR=EAN
with Original Maturity of EHFR
more than Three Months

Interest Received FEUWA

Dividend Received BREWA

Net Cash Outflow from Investing RETENTIHEREHE

Activities

2023 2022
HK$ &t HKS %7t
196,909,385 (74,794,095)
73,035,156 67,531,315
3,572,589 567,660
77,821,044 15,225,554
(37,306,890) 155,981,184
232,331 21,156

- 6,037,704

314,263,615 170,570,478
(2,622,276) (2,230,767)
4,031,051 619,306
128,989,785 57,834,645
(25,811,848) 31,900,077
418,850,327 258,693,739
(232,331) (21,156)
418,617,996 258,672,583
- (27,000,424)
(161,314,444) (86,401,085)
- 96,140
(271,387,765) (160,843,813)
26,413,440 4,378,367
4,936,368 4,621,068

(401,352,401)

(265,149,747)




LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023 (Continued)

HEREREE2023FE6 A30HEE (&)

Cash Flows from a Financing Activity
Principal Portion of Lease Payment

Net Cash Outflow from a
Financing Activity

Net Increase/(Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
at the Beginning of the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents
at the End of the Year

Analysis of the Balances of
Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and Bank Balances

Non-pledged Time Deposits with
Original Maturity of less than
Three Months

BMEZDNRERE
HENRBIETE

METHHFRERHE

RERAEEEY
#w/ (GRd) 8

FHOzRE
RAEEEY

FRZBE
RAEEEY

RERREEEY
REERDAT

BERIRITHEER

FREHMBEER=EAK
FEIEIRE IR

Notes

Byt

32

18 (b)

18 (b)
18 (b)
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2023 2022
HK$ &t HKS %7t
(3,245,414) (435,808)
(3,245,414) (435,808)
14,020,181 (6,912,972)
15,155,108 22,068,080
29,175,289 15,155,108
28,223,774 14,067,052
951,515 1,088,056
29,175,289 15,155,108
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

IR AN Y AA K4 N =
B EEERE 2 2023F6 A30HFE
Restricted Other Total
Funds Funds
SREES HitES et
HK$ &7t HK$ &t HK$ &t
(Note KT 12) (Note HfizE 13)
Balance as at 1 July 2021 2021 £ 7 B 1 A& 635,806,702 1,305,624,474 1,941,431,176
Total Comprehensive TEERZE (70,563,263) (5,429,234) (75,992,497)
Loss for the Year EE
Inter-fund Transfer HEER 65,119,017 (65,119,017) -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 2022 &£ 6 A 30 H#&84 630,362,456 1,235,076,223 1,865,438,679
Balance as at 1 July 2022 2022 7 A1 A& 630,362,456 1,235,076,223 1,865,438,679

Total Comprehensive
(Loss)/Income for the Year
Inter-fund Transfer

Balance as at 30 June 2023

REERZE
(B18) /W&
BEEER

2023 &£ 6 B 30 HiEsR

(31,219,790)

18,670,304

227,568,309

(18,670,304)

196,348,519

617,812,970

1,443,974,228

2,061,787,198




GENERAL INFORMATION

Lingnan University, formerly Lingnan College,
is the only liberal arts university in the territory,
with the longest established tradition among
the local institutions of higher education.
The University was incorporated on 30 July
1999 following the enactment of the Lingnan
University Ordinance. lIts history, however,
dates back to 1888, when its forerunner, the
prestigious Lingnan University in Guangzhou,
China, was founded.

Lingnan University is committed to the
provision of quality education distinguished
by the best liberal arts traditions. It adopts a
whole-person approach to education which
enables its students to think, judge, care and,
ultimately, act responsibly in the changing
circumstances of Hong Kong, the region and
the world.

The principal place of operation is Tuen Mun,
Hong Kong.

The University founded Lingnan Institute for
Sustainable Development Limited, a company
limited by guarantee without share capital,
on 22 September 2020 to bid for the ex-
North Kowloon Magistracy Building from the
Government.

Since the building was awarded to another
organization in December 2022, the University
applied for deregistration of the subsidiary
on 27 June 2023. A notice of the proposed
deregistration of the subsidiary was published
in the Gazette on 21 July 2023.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M oL

1. —ER

EMAL . BRTEm Sk - A M —
MIEREARE  REAMBRSERRP =
BISAEL - KRB 19994 7 A 30 HK
BEEANEEGI ML - BEEE A B
£1888F  TABRBWEMNEREKZE
STREER o

EHASRTHARHKEUNERERNE
BHE - REUTZ2AHE | BRE - BB
SAEMER A BE  SKERAE
B Em R R E B EEIRES
BITRE

ARBHETELEMEUNEEHEFT -

F2020F 9 A22H » RERI T %M A
BETERERARAT - BERAER
BERAR - AEMBRMABEATIELEEE
HEBT KAE ©

L IREEYIN 2022 FF 12 AHEAE B — 1
B KENR20234%6 A27 HEHFBGEM
BAREUHEFMI R 2023F7 A 218
% o
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2.1

Particulars of the University’s subsidiary is as
follows:

ZHIE AR ZFHBWT

Lingnan Institute for Sustainable Development Limited

BRI EERBRARAQT]

Place of incorporation/registration and business Hong Kong
FEMBCAL / ST K & 26 3 B B
Percentage of equity interest attributable to the

University 100%

KRR BEIG A A D

Principal activity

EBER

The results of the subsidiary have not been
consolidated into the University’s financial
statements, owing to the financial insignificance
to the University.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
accounting policies generally adopted by
higher educational institutions in Hong Kong as
expressed in the Statement of Recommended
Accounting Practice (“SORP”) for University
Grants Committee (“UGC”) Funded Institutions
in Hong Kong.

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except
for equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, which have been measured at fair value,
and are presented in Hong Kong dollars.

Education but was dormant during the year

¥E BEFRNREEY

PR bt PR 8 2 ) B B 745 48 A0 Ko B %5 iR 0 48
MEXBEEMS M RE  KBEE
Z R RR AR A SR A L B A R RO RE
5RO

2.1 {RRERE

REMBHRRDBIEBL SRR
2 BEMBHREER - BEGHER
LRaB(ATHABRIBAMBERSE
ADARBBREHEENLZBEGME
P EERERRARRARETINE
Z G EAAN ST BERRE MARER ©

% B AR T IRIR R L AR AN B AR
2 EEERAALEBEFAZE S
RZEDRE KA EEF AW R
MEREEAREBETE - AMBR
RABEZT -



2.2

The preparation of financial statements
with  HKFRSs requires
management to make judgement, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgement about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

in  conformity

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
financial period. None of these developments
are relevant to the University.

REBMBHRERANEN - EEEMR
EHHE  HENRKREFESIRE
EBRENEEMAE  RIEARIHZ
HE - SELEENMRREGEZENBEN
KEhEBAEITE  EREHEMEMN
SRERBRTRAHEEEMAERN
REEENER - ERERAUERRIRN
HEEE -

RESRHEMRNELEHEMESEZ
RER - EFTEENEBITRGTEF
ZEERTHEE - BBEISERE
HiEenk : P EE MR AR ERRE - A
BRI ENEHRIARIBEEXN -

Q

22 BHBHERREZ LD

BEGMAGRN TETHEBM KR
SEAER YR AMBBMEERE
X PR E LA R] AN K 2R o
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The University has not applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, that have been
issued but are not yet effective, and potentially
relevant to the University’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

Amendments to HKAS 8
Definition of Accounting Estimates'

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that
are expected to be applicable to the University
is described below.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement
2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is
permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary.

2.3 BREMERERZEBMBRS

#A

T AT RE SR B2 7 ¥R AR ARRE 2 ¥TRT &%
RETNETBMBHREEL - EBEM -
HE R AR TR IR AR KB ERAN

EBEEHERIE 1 9 RE BRI A
HHREE2R LI
BHHENRE'

ES B RRIEL S 2 51T
@it S

AN 2023E 1 A1 B A RBEEE S
]

ARTERERN AR BRH HREE
B2 — S AT

R GFHERIE 13 2 BT T EERA B
BERCERBE [E2GBER] M3k
[EXEFHBK] - ESBRERDLE
MBmERTFOEMER —HRE R -
IMRENENGEBRAR /LG HR
SRETEUBHRREAEENBEAY
BHMRMELEPRER - RIZIBSETH
REB2W - BRMBREENELR
TE2MZEBFTREFERAEFBR
BEMNEZEMSRIRM T IFR IS
5l BB ERFEIRZBITN_-F
TEF-A-RARZRABNFELRMB
R RFHRATER - R BB YW
FEEBBLEE 25 BT PIREHE
SIRIERBINE - RFIERTER A BB

Z:/\\gﬁg o



Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in
accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The University is currently assessing the impact
of the above amendments on its financial
statements. From the initial assessment, it is
considered that these amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the
University’s financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Property, Plant and Equipment and
Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction-in-progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the cost directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the University and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of a replaced part is derecognized. All
other repairs and maintenance expenditures
are recognized as expenses in the statement
of income and expenditure during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

BFREGTERE SR ZENES T Eatfh
AAEEMEABREENER - G54
ARER RV B MERT FESETETE
HENEBEEE - ZETRKEST B
FERF ERMMBAEERLE
AT REFERIR T -_=F—A—
Bk RREMFERERREAER X
HERRZERERS B EENER
BRI R EFHERTEL - RFFEAE
==

REBERN EETHEPBHRRZZE
TR o IR FhET - TREIRRFEE
TEHARENPBERREEETFAEXN

B/ 488
= °

FEGHEER

RE ~ 5kt~ SMRIFE

& RENSEM (EZTRRIN LK
AEMERBITE REMRMERBRER

N

}Lho

—IERE - REBMBEVZRAERERE
ANE - UERZEEEEBENRZE &
TR ML B R - (EfERAORIERA -

miRE ~ RIEMBMRBEEFREE
ZRX - PImREMEEXESE  —R
REES Z BB ARG AR RER
RFX - WA AE  ZEFXHATE
H—IARE - KBRS EELEREAR
WARZFEARAKEENmAER - M
IR B ZRRBE ST SEET 8 0 BB
LELX W - (ERZBEEE ZBRINKA
B SMFR—HEE -
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Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction-in-progress, are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings, Structures and Fittings:

20 - 50 years

Leasehold Improvements:

7 years or term of lease, whichever is shorter

Furniture and Equipment:

3 -5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and its carrying
amount, and is recognized in the statement of
income and expenditure on disposal.

%« R R B (TR N) 7
S P SRR E SR SHR AT B A S
WA EERE - FREH - RERS
EFEHERE AERMREE AT
ST RS - WAEEE T B -

EERFHIT

RE - BERETER

20E=504F

MEEEHRR

TESMEFH  UREE A%
REREEM -

3ESF
M—IERE - RERBEMOTEEAER
ANRIEE B FR - BIZIEB BB - A

BEMNER  2ERZETENY mE
HZAME BRHRITE ©

MEENKREEAREAT I KLE S
8 AEENRHREE A W@ EEE -

—IERE  REESM REER - =X
A EERASEER - W% R ARE
BN - BIARRREERR o
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Construction-in-progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Construction-in-progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the
University reviews the carrying amounts of the
property, plant and equipment to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognized no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs to sell and value in
use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized as an expense
immediately.
Where an impairment
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as
income immediately.

loss subsequently

Leases

The University assesses at contract inception
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

ERTRERAREEBRIRLEAE
FE - BEIRTIRAMERRE  #£&2
TIREHEBREEE 2RE - RKEK&EH
ZESI

RE ~ skt kaEMEE

REBEREREER  ABEERIR
- RELSVMEENREE - AEE
ERERRBENRTEECHERMER
18 AT ER R ER B NMEFEX
AIRER R

& EM R U El S5 (A BEREE
RAEFEREERERNRSE) At
REREE  BIZBEENREERSR
EHWEEEE - RERIE AR HER
R -

fi R E B TR R R B - B & E R E K
REEEEFTENGIRDEE - E
RiESNRAETSBRBEFEZE
BECTEBDREBENBL NME
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University as a lessee

The University applies a single recognition
and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases. The University
recognizes lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognized at the
commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Education Centres:

5to 6 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
University by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognized at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the University and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the University exercising
the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognized as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition

that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the University uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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(c) Short-term leases

The University applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of education centres (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

University as a lessor

When the University acts as a lessor, it
classifies at lease inception (or when there is a
lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the University does not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components,
the University allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of income and expenditure due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognized as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted
for as finance leases.
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Investments and Other Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
University’s business model for managing
them. Withthe exception of accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the University has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component,
the University initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the University has
applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from
1 July 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified
and measured at amortized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

The University’s business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
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All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognized on the trade date, that
is, the date that the University commits to
purchase or sell the assets. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
assets depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt
Instruments)

The University measures financial assets
at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

e Thefinancial assetis held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of income and expenditure when the
asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.
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Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive Income (Equity
Investments)

Upon initial recognition, the University can elect
to classify irrevocably its equity investments
as equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when
they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets
are never recycled to the statement of income
and expenditure. Dividends are recognized
as other income in the statement of income
and expenditure when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the University and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the University benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains
are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.
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Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated wupon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces,
an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognized in the statement of income
and expenditure.

This category includes equity investments
which the University had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognized
as other income in the statement of income
and expenditure when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the University and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets

The University derecognizes a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The University recognizes an allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the University expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General Approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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At each reporting date, the University assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment,
the University compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The University considers a financial asset
in default when contractual payments are
1 year past due. However, in certain cases,
the University may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the University is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the University.
A financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for accounts
receivable which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified Approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or when
the University applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the University applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the University does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The University
has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The University’s financial liabilities include
secured loan, lease liabilities and financial
liabilities included in accounts payable and
accruals.
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Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost including
secured loan, lease liabilities and financial
liabilities included in accounts payable and
accruals are initially stated at fair value less
directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortized cost,
using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of income and expenditure when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through
the amortization process.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.
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When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of income and
expenditure.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank and
demand deposits with bank. Cash equivalents
are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when
acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at bank, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.
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Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the University
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, which will probably
result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reasonably estimated. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognized when control of goods or services
is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the
University expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Tuition, Programme and Other Fees

Revenue from the provision of programmes
is recognized over the scheduled period on
a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the University. Fees
received in advance are included in contract
liabilities.
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Residence Halls Fee

Residence halls fee are recognized when
the services are rendered. Fees received in
advance are included in contract liabilities.

Chinese Medicine Clinic Fee

Chinese medicine clinic fee are recognized
when the services are rendered.

Block Grants and
Supplementary Grants

Non-accountable

Block grants and non-accountable
supplementary grants from UGC are recognized
as income to the extent of the related revenue
expenditure incurred plus any such other
grants, which are received in excess of the
related expenses incurred, but transferred to
General and Development Reserve Fund in the
reporting period. Subventions received before
the occurrence of the related revenue and
capital expenditure and are in excess of the
transfers to General and Development Reserve
Fund are recognized as Deferred Income.

Other Subventions

Other subventions, which are earmarked
for specific purposes, are recognized as
income to the extent of the related revenue
expenditure incurred in the reporting period.
Subventions received before the occurrence of
the related revenue and capital expenditure are
recognized as Deferred Income.

Subventions Spent on Capital Expenditure

Subventions spent on capital expenditure
are treated as Deferred Capital Fund and
recognized as income over the useful lives of
the related assets when the assets are put into
use, to the extent of the related depreciation
incurred for that period.
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Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis
on the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions designated for
financing capital expenditure are treated as
Deferred Income when received; any amount
spent on capital expenditure is transferred
to Deferred Capital Fund and recognized as
income over the useful lives of the related
assets when the assets are put in use, to the
extent of the related depreciation incurred for
that period.

Other donations in cash of which the unspent
balance need not be refunded are recognized
as income when received or receivable from
the donors. Outstanding pledges are not
recognized as income unless a legal obligation
on the donor can be established by the
University.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the right
to receive payment has been established.

Rental Income

Rental income is recognized on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when a
payment is received or a payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the University transfers the related goods or
delivers the services. Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the University
transfers the control of the related goods or
services to the customer.

FIE KA

MBWARKRERRNSRIFERHN R
R EERET

1REE R £

EEAREAEHWBR M RBER
BRI E R AR TR - BB 8
CHRUEREETCEAESA - ANHE
MEEERERNOMABFRAER S
A EEHRRAER - AEENTER
PR

HitR e BBMERBHRRITRE
E o RUEI BRI R R RN - B
FRBREMUBBAGEZRETERMN
AN EVEGE - B RIR IR AR BRI
BIFERASWA

BREWA

P SR ATA B BERE 32 By T LA TR,

HEZ WA

TH & W AT TE & B DARR ] L (I BEERR ©

BRRE

FER PR an IR RS 2 Al -
IRENF P e R R P R SR
ER(ARREERE)  HESEE WE
RBAKNAE - EREBREE KA
BmABRENEHRERCEFE - &
HWRESRERSLA



Employee Benefits

Employee Leave Pay

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognized when they accrue to the employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Mandatory Provident Fund

The University operates a defined contribution
Mandatory  Provident  Fund  retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for its employees. Contributions are
made based on percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of income and expenditure as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the University
in an independently administered fund. The
University’s employer mandatory contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, while voluntary
contributions vest with them according to the
vesting schedule of the Scheme.
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Foreign Currencies

These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the University’s
functional currency. The University determines
its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of the University
are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions are initially
recorded using the exchange rates ruling at the
date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of reporting period. All differences
are taken to the statement of income and
expenditure. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.

Reserves
Endowment Donations

Endowment Donations represent donations
which are being held intact in perpetuity and
only the interest income therefrom can be
utilized for the general development of the
University and designated purposes.
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General and Development Reserve Fund

General and Development Reserve Fund
(“GDRF”) represents unspent funds of UGC
recurrent grants from one funding period
(usually a triennium) to the next. The balance
of GDRF at the end of a funding period which
can be carried over to the next funding period
should not exceed 20% of the University’s
approved recurrent grants for that funding
period. Should the balance of the GDRF at
the end of a funding period exceed the ceiling
allowed for that funding period, the excess
should be transferred to Amount Refundable
of Unspent Recurrent Grants in the account of
Amount Due to UGC pending the recovery by
the UGC.

Operations Reserves
Operations Reserves comprise the funds
generated from the self-financing programmes

and projects of the University.

Deferred Capital Fund

Deferred Capital Fund represents the
Government  subventions and
development donations spent in the purchase
of property, plant and equipment or capital
projects which are subject to depreciation.
Deferred Capital Fund will be reduced to the
same extent as and when the depreciation
of the related property, plant and equipment
is charged to the statement of income and
expenditure.
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Deferred Income

Funds earmarked for specific purposes, of
which the unspent balance should be refunded,
including Government Subventions, Donations
and Benefactions (other than those spent
on capital expenditure which are transferred
to Deferred Capital Fund), and Interest and
Investment Income arising from these funds,
are not recorded as income if the related
expenditure has not yet been incurred during
the year. Funds of such nature received but not
yet recognized in the statement of income and
expenditure are recorded as Deferred Income.

Capital Management

The various restricted and other funds of
the University represent the accumulated
unspent balance of subventions, fees income,
donations, investment income, income
generated from self-financing activities and
other designated funds. These funds are
managed according to the relevant grant
and funding conditions, where applicable,
and the University’s investment and financial
management guidelines and procedures. The
objective is to safeguard the University’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
optimal reserves to provide tertiary education
and to support the future development of the
University.

The University manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments in accordance with
changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. During the
year ended 30 June 2023, the University’s
overall capital management policy remained
unchanged from prior years.
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5. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS

AT B

Subventions from UGC
Block Grants and
Non-accountable Supplementary Grants
Supplementary Adjustments
Research Matching Grants

Earmarked Grants

Research

Housing-related Expenses other than
Home Financing Scheme

Knowledge Transfer

Targeted Taught Postgraduate Programmes
Fellowships Scheme

Enhancing Campus Security

Government’s Job Creation Scheme under
Anti-epidemic Fund

Student Support Services in response to
the COVID-19 Pandemic

Strategic Development of Virtual Teaching
and Learning

Others

Rates and Government Rent Refunded

Capital Grants and Alterations, Additions &
Improvements (AA&I) Block Allocation

Grants from Government Agencies
Rates and Government Rent Refunded
Others
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2023 2022

HK$ % 7T HK$ &TT
470,895,823 422,669,070
15,925,000 23,561,000
6,534,116 4,624,780
493,354,939 450,854,850
15,902,490 10,962,647
812,676 849,144
1,311,079 1,101,542
1,084,175 2,069,925
2,337,282 2,604,135
14,448,531 3,271,712
1,441,921 2,055,660
7,045,134 6,441,521
2,039,230 1,196,026
46,422,518 30,552,312
7,881,613 7,632,624
35,404,184 36,694,633
583,063,254 525,734,419
796,400 792,400
15,144,936 12,467,934
15,941,336 13,260,334
599,004,590 538,994,753
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6. TUITION, PROGRAMMES AND OTHER FEES
2 FERHEMKE

UGC-Funded Programmes HESERE
Tuition Fees ==k

Programme and Other Fees e R A E
Non UGC-Funded Programmes IHESEHRRE
Tuition Fees =F

Programme and Other Income RE R EAA

Notes:

1. During the year, tuition, programmes and other fees were
recognized when the services were rendered over time,
i.e. the performance obligations were satisfied. Payments
were generally due before the commencement of the
terms/courses. The University’s geographical market was
in Hong Kong.

2. During the year, the amount of tuition, programmes and
other fees recognized, that had been included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period, was
HK$167.54 million (2022: HK$102.90 million).

2023 2022

HK$ % T HKS$ & T
156,255,836 147,085,996
4,783,719 3,225,664
161,039,555 150,311,660
424,775,870 317,599,173
12,466,029 9,718,747
437,241,899 327,317,920
598,281,454 477,629,580

1LFER RERREEREOSEECIRE TEOE
) EHRAEE  RENEMER  SLBERABTEHE
SHY/ REMBAIA - RENRIETIZEES °

2.FN RBBRTI6T5EATHNEE - RIEMH
ol B (2022 - 1.0291887T) - Mt WEFTAF
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7. INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME/(LOSS)

MEBAREWA /(E518)

Interest Income
Dividend Income

Net Realized and Unrealized Loss on
Financial Assets at Fair Value through

Profit or Loss

FEWA

3NN

UAREBEFABRIRNEH
BEEZEBRERARERNEF
B8

8. DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS

AT B BREY

Capital Projects (Note)

Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries
Donations for Research Activities (Note)

Others (Note)

Note:

During the year, the cash donation received from the Hong
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust was HK$60.83 million

B@EE (M)
BEIITZTEE) (MYEE)
Hitb (MiaE)

GEE

(2022: HK$11.48 million) and the Centre for Effective Altruism WEIEK

was HK$0.04M (2022: HKS$Nil).

2022/23 LINGNAN UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL REPORT ° Bi##keE

2023
HKS &TT

45,434,676
4,936,368
(13,064,154)

2022
HK$ ETT

5,945,458
4,621,068
(166,547,710)

37,306,890 (155,981,184)
2023 2022

HKS 37T HKS 58 37T
17,262,261 7,435,067
7,414,730 7,736,714
10,774,606 11,272,394
10,927,387 8,522,824
46,378,984 34,966,999

REEEABEESAEETEESNREEHAE6,083
BB (2022 1 1,148 B8 70) kB BFMBERH LM
BABBIT (2022 1 ) o
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9. AUXILIARY SERVICES
wRBNARTS

Residence Halls

Car Park

Catering Services

Rental Income

Rental Contribution from Staff
Sports Complex

Chinese Medicine Clinic
Auditorium

Notes:

BE
(EEE
BRI
HEWA
HHEESE
EAE
hERDR

REE

1. During the year, residence halls income was recognized
when the services were rendered over time, i.e. the
performance obligations were satisfied. Payments
were generally due before the commencement of the
terms. Chinese medicine clinic income was collected
and recognized when the services were rendered. The
University’s geographical market was in Hong Kong.

2. During the year, the amount residence halls income
recognized, that had been included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period was HK$2.09 million

(2022: HK$1.87 million).

10. OTHER INCOME
HAURA

Contract Research
Survey and Service Income
Miscellaneous

WERRE
AERRIEWA
FETRWA

2023 2022
HK$ &t HK$ &7t
39,555,729 30,747,715
800,579 485,440
600,000 322,984
318,980 421,600
463,591 329,966
378,528 190,450
856,180 558,785
88,000 -
43,061,587 33,056,940

s

150 RBRBIRHEBREOEM(IHRETEOR
B)EZRRBESRA - WEBBTHERHFGATX
i o B2 BT IR AR (AR 75 B AR B g RR - KR

MR E TSRS o

2.FER KEMRT209E8E THEE WA (2022 :
187 BB TT) ' M EBETAFVNANALRS -

2023 2022

HK$ % 7T HKS$ & T
9,913,068 3,889,637
613,828 1,238,904
1,503,723 1,042,261
12,030,619 6,170,802




11. EXPENDITURE

Learning and Research B R
Instruction and Research HERMR
Library EEHE

Central Computing Facilities 1R & k14
Other Academic Services H b Ea 15 RS

Institutional Support BEXE
Management and General EER-BRIE
Premises and RER
Related Expenses V[
Student and General BER R
Education Services HE R
Other Activities HitE 8

Total Expenditure 2022/2023

2022/2023 FEHATH

Total Expenditure 2021/2022

2021/2022 FEAH

Staff Costs Operating
and Benefits Expenses 2023 2022
BWE %8  Depreciation Total Total
HMER X s} ok ok
HKS BT HKS #E T HKS$ # T HKS$ &7t HK$ &t
480,978,612 71,307,897 1,898,447 554,184,956 486,616,067
17,990,370 21,791,645 685,686 40,467,701 38,763,432
30,313,818 23,621,309 8,823,348 62,758,475 48,514,397
58,234,684 11,443,836 439,485 70,118,005 63,119,806
587,517,484 128,164,687 11,846,966 727,529,137 637,013,702
81,773,828 28,819,517 159,099 110,752,444 95,559,974
14,133,837 98,560,038 59,634,194 172,328,069 163,920,922
38,157,424 88,431,470 849,682 127,438,576 110,920,650
335,028 226,270 545,215 1,106,513 2,216,737
134,400,117 216,037,295 61,188,190 411,625,602 372,618,283
(Note Kz 11.1)
721,917,601 344,201,982 73,035,156  1,139,154,739
(Note P& 11.2)
646,911,785 295,188,885 67,531,315 1,009,631,985
(Note PitzE 11.2)
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11.1 ANALYSIS OF INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT OPERATING EXPENSES
W REESZ LA

Management and General
Auditor’s Remuneration
Furniture and Equipment
Insurance - General

Legal and Professional Fees
Office and Publicity Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance

Staff Recruitment

Staff Development and Training

Premises and Related Expenses
Furniture and Equipment
Government Rent and Rates
Insurance - Property

Minor Works

Legal and Professional Fees

Office Expenses

Premises and Facility Rental
Repairs and Maintenance

Utilities, Cleaning, Communication,

Security and Management Services

Net Loss on Disposal of Property,
Plant and Equipment
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets
Interest Expense in respect
of Lease Liabilities

EER-BIE
ZERRD BN &

RE RN
—RRE
EEREXRBER
WAEREELH
HIERIRE

BT R

BT

RERME@EZH
RE R 2EM
AT HEAE K2 2= Em
BIERR

NEET R
ERRBERBER
WAEZH

B k&EHE

IS RIRE

~ARY - BR - B
RE R EIRARTE
RERERERBMIER
SFEE
ERAREEZIE
HEBENERMN S

2023 2022

HK$ % T HKS$ & T
605,000 639,000
832,704 138,183
1,623,158 1,380,053
1,343,383 810,112
21,238,709 11,778,133
1,046,652 815,516
2,009,959 2,161,609
219,952 263,142
28,819,517 17,985,748
4,795,373 1,276,304
8,678,014 8,425,024
1,048,606 1,688,017
2,785,135 2,851,824
1,677,157 1,491,506
457,644 389,080
2,341,009 2,561,807
18,904,677 18,847,988
54,067,503 51,338,664
- 6,037,704
3,572,589 567,660
232,331 21,156
98,560,038 95,496,734




11.1 ANALYSIS OF INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

B REE 2 (&)

Student and General Education Services
Ceremonies, Assembly and Promotions

Careers and Counselling Services

Furniture and Equipment

Student Exchange

Office Expenses

Residence Hall Expenses

Repairs and Maintenance

Student Activities, Study Tour and
Grants to Student Societies

Sports Facilities

Scholarship and Financial Aid

Staff Development and Training

Student Medical and Dental Scheme

Other Activities
Catering Services
Survey and Service
Transportation Service

BAR -RYBERE
Hie - KEREE
e INEEl b
REREM
BER
MAEZH
BEXH
HEERRE
BLRE  BEEER
EBBEEEH

B2 A BRI
RES R MHER
BT
BLBEENITRHR S

HitEE
BRI
RAERRB
Ew R

11.2 ANALYSIS OF STAFF COSTS AND BENEFITS

e S FrEM R DA

Salaries and Wages
Gratuities

MPF Contributions
Other Benefits

FERTE
Himi
AR
Hib @
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2023 2022

HK$ % 7T HK$ &TT
2,095,226 2,681,903
741,578 244,440
219,585 85,762
4,563,416 3,530,885
2,252,852 679,404
35,281,041 28,178,868
1,433,026 1,449,330
9,802,301 8,906,672
1,349,383 1,175,687
29,138,555 26,574,340
4,530 10,297
1,549,977 1,109,673
88,431,470 74,627,261
50,468 391,767
85,024 474,937
90,778 78,233
226,270 944,937
216,037,295 189,054,680
2023 2022

HK$ % T HK$ & 7T
630,818,763 559,757,940
45,414,996 38,961,890
26,000,374 25,468,044
19,683,468 22,723,911
721,917,601 646,911,785
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12. RESTRICTED FUNDS
ZIRFIEE

Balance as at 1.7.2021 #5 &4

Transfer from/(to) Statement of Comprehensive
Income 8 /(£ ) 2EKER
Inter-fund Transfer E &

Balance as at 30.6.2022 %84

Balance as at 1.7.2022 #5 &%

Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive
Income BZ2HEEEK
Inter-fund Transfer E£E %

Balance as at 30.6.2023 £584

Investment Designated Funds
Revaluation EERZES

Endowment Reserve Donations / Endowment
Donations BE Funds Funds Total
BAREH Eisfas BR/ES BAES @it
HK$ BT HK$ BT HK$ &7t HK$ &7t HKS &7t
134,852,939 7,441,620 459,584,385 33,927,758 635,806,702
300,000 (1,198,402) (69,664,861) - (70,563,263)
- - 65,119,017 - 65,119,017
135,152,939 6,243,218 455,038,541 33,927,758 630,362,456
135,152,939 6,243,218 455,038,541 33,927,758 630,362,456
- (560,866) (30,658,924) - (31,219,790)
- - 18,670,304 - 18,670,304
135,152,939 5,682,352 443,049,921 33,927,758 617,812,970




13. OTHER FUNDS

UGC Funds Other Reserves
HEeRS Hitr R
Unallocated
General and Unallocated Research Non-Designated
Development Matching Matching Operations Donations and
Reserve Fund Grants Grants Reserves Benefactions
—-RERER AATAR AATAE EE FRERE Total
BaES REygye WREYEYS BB AxRER @it
HKS$ B 7 HKS$ B 7 HKS$ &7 HKS$ &7 HKS$ &7 HK$ &7
Balance as at 1.7.2021 &8 194,518,623 148,490,817 232,492 755,586,360 206,796,182 1,305,624,474
Transfer from/(to) Statement of 20,312,734 128,850 4,627,058 (27,410,411) (3,087,465) (5,429,234)
Comprehensive Income
BR/(Z)2AKEE
Inter-fund Transfer E&1F R 6,335,726 (31,999,483) (4,624,780) (9,715,398) (25,115,082) (65,119,017)
Balance as at 30.6.2022 &#4 221,167,083 116,620,184 234,770 718,460,551 178,593,635 1,235,076,223
Balance as at 1.7.2022 &84 221,167,083 116,620,184 234,770 718,460,551 178,593,635 1,235,076,223
Transfer from Statement of 46,215,380 916,917 6,558,043 171,962,099 1,915,870 227,568,309
Comprehensive Income
EE2EKER
Inter-fund Transfer E&1F 9,556,030 (15,686,680) (6,534,116) 9,496,594 (15,502,132) (18,670,304)
Balance as at 30.6.2023 &#4 276,938,493 101,850,421 258,697 899,919,244 165,007,373 1,443,974,228

As at 30 June 2023, the total balance of UGC Funds
derived from General and Development Reserve
Fund, Unallocated Matching Grants and Unallocated
Research Matching Grants was HK$379.0 million
(2022: HK$338.0 million).

As at 30 June 2023, the total balance of Other
Reserves derived from Operations Reserves and
Non-Designated Donations and Benefactions was
HK$1,064.9 million (2022: HK$897.1 million).

R2023F6 H30H  H—MAERFEERES
MARDEERGES @S ER s HEeHL A
B8 3.790 (BT (2022 : 3.380 18 TT) ©

R2023F6 H30H - L EREENMIEEER
BRI EERAR v b FE R 510.649
B8 (2022 : 8.971{BHETT) °
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

RE « Rk

Cost B4

Asat1July2022 %2022 %781 H
Additions &

Disposals E&

Transfers B

As at 30 June 2023 }A 2023 &6 A 30 B

Accumulated Depreciation ER&IT &
Asat1July2022 % 2022 7 B 1 H
Depreciation Provided during the Year
AERGHRITE

Disposals &

As at 30 June 2023 A 2023 % 6 B 30 H

Cost B A&

Asat1July 2021 42021 57 A1 H
Additions &

Disposals &

Transfers B

As at 30 June 2022 }A 2022 £ 6 A 30 H

Accumulated Depreciation & E
Asat1July 2021 4202157 A1 H
Depreciation Provided during the Year
RERTRITE

Disposals E&

As at 30 June 2022 74 2022 % 6 B 30 B

As at 30 June 2023 A 2023 £ 6 A 30 A

As at 30 June 2022 74 2022 £ 6 A 30 H

Buildings,
Structures & Leasehold
Fittings  Improvements  Construction- Furniture &

RE  BER HEEE in-Progress Equipment Total
B %R MRTR ERIR  GARSEH w3t
HKS &7t HKS &7t HKS 87T HKS 87T HKS 87T

1,765,758,560 344,737,978 29,300,407 172,590,834  2,312,387,779
5,140,392 11,953,480 114,813,311 29,407,261 161,314,444

- (9,124,000) - (1,848,877) (10,972,877)

21,769,374 - (21,769,374) - -
1,792,668,326 347,567,458 122,344,344 200,149,218  2,462,729,346
629,712,194 320,253,415 - 154,507,886  1,104,473,495
43,344,363 10,535,012 - 19,155,781 73,035,156

- (9,124,000) - (1,848,877) (10,972,877)
673,056,557 321,664,427 - 171,814,790  1,166,535,774
1,702,729,326 339,578,509 36,605,415 166,292,459  2,245,205,709
9,964,977 5,159,469 58,026,918 13,249,721 86,401,085
(12,267,669) - - (6,951,346) (19,219,015)
65,331,926 - (65,331,926) - -
1,765,758,560 344,737,978 29,300,407 172,590,834  2,312,387,779
593,757,382 310,579,733 - 145,690,236  1,050,027,351
42,088,637 9,673,682 - 15,768,996 67,531,315
(6,133,825) - - (6,951,346) (13,085,171)
629,712,194 320,253,415 - 154,507,886  1,104,473,495
1,119,611,769 25,903,031 122,344,344 28,334,428  1,296,193,572
1,136,046,366 24,484,563 29,300,407 18,082,948 1,207,914,284




15. LEASES

HE
The University has leased various premises as REHBTIRAMEERHEBR LARE PR
education centres for hosting its programmes, 2 HEIARERNF - EIEHEERE - R
and the terms of the lease are 5 to 6 years without ERVEREER - WERETEMER AR -

extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a range of different
terms and conditions.

(a) Right-of-use Assets () FRAEEE

The carrying amounts of the University’s right-of- RFEE FRAREEECRASBEREZEHN
use assets and the movements during the year are ™

as follows:

Education Centre and Total

HEPOLRAT
2023 2022
HK$ &7t HK$ &7t
As at 1 July Mm7HB1H8 8,729,083 345,603
Addition wE 24,649,773 8,951,140
Depreciation e (3,572,589) (567,660)
As at 30 June 6 H30A 29,806,267 8,729,083
(b) Lease Liabilities (b) HEERE
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the RFEE HERGEZRESELEZZHNAT -
movements during the year are as follows:
2023 2022
HK$ &7t HK$ /&7t
As at 1 July H7A1H8 8,863,824 348,492
Addition ®eE 24,649,773 8,951,140
Accretion of Interest recognized during the year 2N EEF| SE RER 232,331 21,156
Payments (NEN (3,477,745) (456,964)
As at 30 June m6A830H 30,268,183 8,863,824
Analysed into: DWE
Current Portion TEIER D 6,338,626 1,250,079
Non-current Portion FEREE 23,929,557 7,613,745
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED)
HE ()

(c) Amounts recognized in Income and Expenditure (OREEEES - TN ST e
in relation to Leases

2023 2022
HKS$ &7t HK$ & 7T
Interest Expense in respect of Lease Liabilities HE&EMNHEBERNEXE 232,331 21,156
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets FHREEEZITE 3,572,589 567,660
Expense relating to short-term leases CHAIAERI 480,800 -
Variable Lease Payments not included inthe ~ Ait2HSEEMEHE 74,204 639,114
Measurement of Lease Liabilities BENTEEEMNK
(included in Expenditure) (BERXZER)
Total Amount recognized in Income and BANR R Z2EEEE
Expenditure 4,359,924 1,227,930
(d) Variable Lease Payments (d) AT EER
The University’s variable and fixed lease payments RERZEREFEHERNFKRINAT -
are set out below:
2023 2022
et et
HKS %7 HK$ % T
As at 30 June A6 A30A
Fixed Payments AR 3,477,745 456,964
Variable Payments FEMIR 74,204 639,114

3,551,949 1,096,078




16. INVESTMENTS

"E

Equity Investments Designated at Fair Value {EEAUARBEFAZEH

through Other Comprehensive Income
Unlisted Equity Investments

Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss

Listed Equity Investments in Hong Kong

Listed Investment Funds

Unlisted Investment Funds

2023 2022
HK$ &t HK$ &t
KR ERRE
FLEmERKRE 5,682,852 6,243,718
5,682,852 6,243,718
DAREBEFAKRZER
HEREE
FHERRE BB 21,640,851 21,198,665
FHESKRE 86,904,780 102,275,920
FLETESIKRE 745,735,265 743,587,749
854,280,896 867,062,334
859,963,748 873,306,052

The fair value hierarchy of the financial instruments
at the end of the reporting period is presented in

Note 36.

RBXREEEN SR ITAENRAEED RHIF
AP RE 36
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17. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

FEURARTR ~ FAMTRRTR R ¥ &

Accounts Receivable

Other Receivables
Prepayments

Rental and Sundry Deposits

Less: Non-current Portion

Current Portion

FEUBRR
HAb AR
AR
HERMERE

B IR BT

TRENED

Loss allowance recognized in respect of accounts

receivable is as follows:

Balance as at 30 Jun

6 B 30 B&keR

2023 2022
HK$ 53T HKS 383t
26,736,794 8,442,827
81,090 560,433
17,380,389 16,493,941
4,264,520 1,604,796
48,462,793 27,101,997
(3,089,696) (2,640,440)
45,373,097 24,461,557
JEWERS  EERREBEERERT -
2023 2022
HK$ 57T HKS 383t
3,087,184 3,087,184




17. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)
FEMARTR ~ TRYBRA B (4R)

An impairment analysis is performed at each R AR EERETRES T A ER
reporting date using a provision matrix to measure HiIEREX - ﬁfﬂ%f ThER AR 5 4280 57
expected credit losses. The provision rates are B FIEKRFTE o et 8 RN K INE
based on days past due for groupings of various #ER- Eﬁ%ﬁ%@&ﬁ’\\#&% HASHEMBESE
customer segments with similar loss patterns 18« ERARR EARREENSETEA o —&m
(i.e. by service type). The calculation reflects the T - BYERREHEA —F R TNAEZAER
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of Bl REB2ZEETUAME -

money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, the University
would consider to write off the accounts receivable
if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

The information below is about the credit risk RABEEEAENRIERRNEERRER
exposure on the accounts receivable using a Wy
provision matrix:

As at 30 June 2023 7 2023% 6 H30H
Past Due B8
More than 3
Months but not
more than 1
Less than 1 Year Over 1
Current Month 1to 3 Months RR=@AE Year Total
X588 EA-ER -EAZ=HA FER-F ER—fF @t
Expected Credit Loss Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 95% 13%
BHERRAE
Gross Carrying Amount (HK$) 22,840,776 869,125 1,186,973 1,644,996 4,182,108 30,723,978
RELE (Br)
Expected Credit Losses (HK$) - - - - 3,987,184 3,987,184

AHERRX (B1)
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17. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

FEURARTR ~ FEITRRT R ¥ (18)

As at 30 June 2022 7202246 A30H
Past Due B2
More than 3
Months but not
more than 1
Less than Year Over 1
Current 1 Month 1 to 3 Months RR=EAE Year Total
REH gR-BE —EBAZ=EA FRA-F ER—% @3t
Expected Credit Loss Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 85% 32%
BHEREAE
Gross Carrying Amount (HK$) 4,152,839 1,166,058 345,152 2,047,565 4,718,397 12,430,011
RELE (Br)
Expected Credit Losses (HK$) 3,987,184 3,987,184

BEHEREX (B

Deposits and other receivables mainly represented
rental deposits, utility deposits and sundry debtors.
Where applicable, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering the
probability of default of comparable companies with
published credit ratings. As at 30 June 2023, the
University assessed the impact of loss allowance
for impairment of deposits and other receivables
was insignificant.

None of the above deposits and other receivables is
either past due or impaired and there was no recent
history of default.

e REMBRRIBEFEEHELRS  KEE
e MEEEEA - EA - AIREEAME
EFIRM AR BL B AELLE - IRERE
BT ETRED T - R2023F6 A30H -
REEFERe REMEKFIE BERER
TEKXK

B A B R S R TR
S BRI o R 28 o



18. TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

EHFRRRERFEEFEY)

(@) Time Deposits

Time Deposits with Original Maturity of
more than Three Months
Classified as Current Assets

Time Deposits with Original Maturity of
less than Three Months

Classified as Current Assets - Cash
and Cash Equivalents (Note 18 (b))

Total

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Time Deposits with Original Maturity of
less than Three Months (Note 18 (a))

Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents

(a) EMER

REHARR=1EA
K E HIfE K
IBRBEE

REIH A ER=EA
TR

NARBEE-RER
REZEY (MEE 18(b))

Bt
(b) RERBREEEY

REBAENR=EA
HEHIFR (MiEE 18(a))

RERRITEER

RERREEEY
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2023
HK$ & 7T

1,517,578,352

951,515

2022
HK$ & 7T

1,246,190,587

1,088,056

1,5618,529,867

1,247,278,643

951,515 1,088,056
28,223,774 14,067,052
29,175,289 15,155,108
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19. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS
FEISERFR K TR E A

2023 2022

HK$ &t HK$ &t

Accounts Payable FE(SRRFR 24,303,677 15,357,326

Accruals and Provisions TEIRE AN EE 49,504,271 32,389,758

Retentions Payable EARe 13,330,405 7,674,960
and Deposits Received kREWEZRE

Contract Liabilities (Note 19 (a)) B1& (MiEE 19(a)) 270,741,141 172,201,355

Amount Due to UGC Ernss 38,583,149 39,849,459

396,462,643 267,472,858

As at 1 July 2021

2023 2022 A2021 7818
HKS$ # T HKS$ &t HK$ &t

Note 19 (a) Contract Liabilities [f{zE 19(a) BN ERE
Tuition Fees BE 252,003,214 160,527,303 100,938,199
Hostel Fees BE 1,500,755 2,091,886 1,873,109
Graduation Deposits SFEAERS 4,774,200 3,997,244 3,246,904
Other Course Fees HihREEA 12,462,972 5,584,922 868,740

270,741,141 172,201,355

Contract liabilities include tuition fees, hostel fees,

&

106,926,952

AMBBERERAKEANESE  FE  REH
e REMBRIZEE R o 2023 F & 2022 FH)

graduation deposit and other course fees received 2

in advance from students. The increase in contract
liabilities in both 2023 and 2022 was mainly due to
the increase in short-term advances received from
students at the end of the year in relation to the
tuition fees.

BHREIENSEZHNFEREL 2 EHITAIK
BB IRIEIEN o

18



20. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

BE=FEAE

Staff Costs

Salaries and Wages

Gratuities

Other Employee Benefits

Retirement Benefit
Scheme Contributions

Payable
Within One Year
After One Year

21. LOAN - SECURED
B -7t

As at 30 June 2023, the outstanding Loan balance

would be repayable as follows:

More than One Year, but not exceeding
Two Years

More than Two Years, but not exceeding
Five Years

After Five Years

Amount due after one year included in
non-current liability

2023 2022
HK$ &t HK$ &t

BB AN
HekIE 28,396,879 31,220,311
M < 47 571,565 40,760,324
HiEERA 214,530 195,421
EARBERET B 147,038 122,905
76,330,012 72,298,961

FEASHARR

—FR 60,699,184 59,208,655
—F L 15,630,828 13,090,306
76,330,012 72,298,961

R2023F6 A30H * REENEFENED

MranT :

2023 2022
HK$ &t HKS &7t

—FEMERN
6,857,834 -

MEEZRER
20,573,492 20,573,492
HFELE - 6,857,834

—FREENLER

SIBREERE 27,431,326 27,431,326
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21. LOAN - SECURED (CONTINUED)
8- Bk (8)

For the purpose of constructing a permanent
premises for the Community College for the
provision of self-financed sub-degree programmes,
the University obtained an interest free loan of
HK$205.7 million (“the Loan”), repayable in 10 equal
annual instalments, from the Financial Secretary
Incorporated (“the Lender”) in 2002. In September
2009, the repayment period of the Loan was
extended to 20 years. Pursuant to the extension, the
first 10 years remained interest free, and thereafter,
a “no-gain-no-loss” (“NGNL”) interest rate to be
determined by the Lender annually will be charged
on the outstanding Loan amount. The NGNL interest
rate as at 30 June 2023 was 2.170% (2022: 1.270%)
per annum.

In consideration of the Loan, all incomes generated
from the courses for which the Loan was granted
have been charged to the Lender by way of a first
fixed charge. As a further security to the Loan, by
way of a first floating charge, all assets and rights,
both present and future, of the University have been
assigned to the Lender.

In February 2022, the University accepted the
lender’s offer of a further interest free deferral of loan
repayment for two years, under which, the original
due date of the 17th instalment will be postponed
from 2 April 2023 to 2 April 2025. As a result, no
amount is repayable until 2024/25.

As at 30 June 2023, the outstanding Loan balance
amounted to HK$27.4 million (2022: HK$27.4
million).

BT BiE R ER AR AR S RARE LS
TR EAEERE  KEM2002 F1{E 8K
BIVEEE(C"ERAT)EE2.057TEBTRE
BERCER)  D10FFHE#E - 7 2009F
98 ZEFMERRLERZE20F - BB
ER%E - BI10FKARE - Hi8  §F 8
MEER - RBAZFNAE - MEAGFHER
ANIZ [T ERAE | RAIARTE - 1202346 A
0H Z[THWIE]HAEAEFELE2170%
(2022 : 1.270%) °

RTBBER  RBALEZKARENEE
EVRRIZHIFT B WA - DASE —BIE A A
RETRA o AN RERBIRENRKNEE
B GUEFHERTABREER

o

>_

R2022F 27 REEX TERARLEN
PEBREHMEERTY  BREZTHE
FITHNERBGH2023F4 2B #ESR
20254 AH2H - At - KEEFEEEANK
TEH & 2024/25 °

R2023F 6 A30H © RKEEME R AE2,740
BB TT(2022: 2,740 BB TT) ©
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23. DEFERRED CAPITAL FUND

IEEEARES

Balance as at 1.7.2021 458

Capital Fund Earned (Note 22)
REEARES (M 22)
Capital Fund Released
BHEAES

Balance as at 30.6.2022 44

Balance as at 1.7.2022 £58&

Capital Fund Earned (Note 22)
REVEARES (M 22)
Capital Fund Released
BHEAES

Balance as at 30.6.2023 44

Capital
Grants and
AA & | Block
Allocation Campus
Earmarked Grants HEy# Development
Block EERZREE MERER Donations
Grants Research Others REIR RERE Total
1 LS i Hit EERX 5 @3t
HKS BT HKS Bt HKS & 7T HKS BT HKS BT HKS BT
39,741,988 48,966 140,253 626,165,864 176,940,846 843,037,917
17,886,888 1,989,433 53,148,241 560,736 73,585,298
(15,606,803) (12,241) (399,637) (34,951,996) (7,389,067) (58,359,744)
42,022,073 36,725 1,730,049 644,362,109 170,112,515 858,263,471
42,022,073 36,725 1,730,049 644,362,109 170,112,515 858,263,471
15,437,793 11,345,334 67,683,977 49,707,582 144,174,686
(16,548,631) (12,241) (2,465,238) (31,512,788) (15,814,744) (66,353,642)
40,911,235 24,484 10,610,145 680,533,298 204,005,353 936,084,515




24. REMUNERATION OF THE HIGHER PAID STAFF

1= Fr e S

The numbers of the higher paid staff falling in the
following bands of annual equivalent remuneration

were:

HK$ & 7T

1,800,001 - 1,950,000
1,950,001 - 2,100,000
2,100,001 - 2,250,000
2,250,001 - 2,400,000
2,400,001 - 2,550,000
2,550,001 - 2,700,000
2,700,001 - 2,850,000
2,850,001 - 3,000,000
3,000,001 - 3,150,000
3,150,001 - 3,300,000
3,300,001 - 3,450,000
3,450,001 - 3,600,000
3,600,001 - 3,750,000
3,750,001 - 3,900,000
3,900,001 - 4,050,000
4,050,001 - 4,200,000
4,200,001 - 4,350,000
4,350,001 - 4,500,000
4,500,001 - 4,650,000
4,650,001 - 4,800,000
4,800,001 - 4,950,000
4,950,001 - 5,100,000
5,100,001 - 5,250,000
5,250,001 - 5,400,000
5,400,001 - 5,550,000
5,550,001 - 5,700,000
5,700,001 - 5,850,000
5,850,001 - 6,000,000
6,000,001 - 6,150,000
6,150,001 - 6,300,000
6,300,001 - 6,450,000

DI 515 B F FEH B AE R VB S B
BAERA

2023 2022
11 16
14 19
15 4

3 2
4 2
2 1
- 2
4 2
2 -
1 1
1 1
- 1
1 -
- 1
1 -
59 52
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25. MATCHING GRANTS AND MATCHED DONATIONS MOVEMENT ANALYSIS

Fo¥ifmBh & Rk B EECH AR EE 2

2023 2022
UGC-funded Operations UGC-funded Operations
HESEYEE HEGEHEE
Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
[ agGkA By ATEEEEN EHEhE EEEEHER
HK$ &7t HK$ &7t HK$ &7t HKS & 7T
Balance as at 1 July 7 B 1 B&s 250,912,307 250,735,452 267,870,468 252,744,612
Income WA
Interest and Investment MEREBEERA 3,619,530 3,894,986 539,318 2,328,296
Income
254,531,837 254,630,438 268,409,786 255,072,908
Expenditure X
Teaching and Research HERRRREFH 968,412 15,313,954 3,814,530 424,706
Enhancement
Internationalization and Student BIF{b | &4 X E B - 282,250 - 154,076
Exchange Activities
Scholarships & Prizes RBENERMR 10,422,095 2,813,050 11,311,068 2,552,268
Bursaries BES - 178,365 - 108,013
Student Development BERRE 2,142,823 854,602 1,725,021 1,094,869
Others Hit 5,275,190 953,012 646,860 3,524
18,808,520 20,395,233 17,497,479 4,337,456
Balance as at 30 June (Note) 6 B 30 B 4&#% ( FitzE) 235,723,317 234,235,205 250,912,307 250,735,452
Note: BeE -

No donation, that could be matched, was received for self-
financing operations since the extension of the Matching
Grant Scheme to non-UGC-funded activities in August 2012.
As the UGC-funded operations of the University were at
degree or above level, no expenditures were incurred for the
activities of sub-degree level. The balance has not included
the accumulated net unrealized loss on investments of
HK$16.17 million (2021/22: accumulated net unrealized loss
HK$9.47 million) as it is not a free balance at the disposal of
the University.

B201268 At BEY @B StEBEEEAES
BB KBS A BT MR 8BS B 6 Al i Y
BR - ARBECENEINREHEELTENHIA
L AR ERRS T EMRENTRIES -
HRRKETEERERRERBZRFAEEFE
B ZEEBEA,6178HEIT (202122 25T RE
IFEE 047 BT ) U TN B S FEEHA o



26. RESEARCH MATCHING GRANTS AND MATCHED DONATIONS/RESEARCH

GRANTS/RESEARCH CONTRACTS MOVEMENT ANALYSIS

WFEECE BN £ T B ECHHAT / HR BN £ | R S A E D

Balance as at 1 July

Income

Donations/Research Grants/
Research Contracts
Received

Interest Income

Expenditure

Research Project(s)

Research Equipment

Setting up of Research
Facilities

Research Activities for
Students

Others

Balance as at 30 June

Note:

No donation / research grant / research contract, that could
be matched, was received for self-financing operation during

the year.

7B 1 B4&&

KA
BRI AEBYE R
CLILON

FIEWA

X
iEAEEE
i)

B F RS

SLWRED

At

6 A 30 Bt

2023
UGC-funded Operations
YESEYELE

Matched
Donations/
Research Grants/
Research
Research Contracts
Matching CEEHIEM/
Grants MEHS/

2022
UGC-funded Operations
HESEHEE

Matched
Donations/
Research Grants/
Research
Research Contracts
Matching CERIER/
Grants MRS/

TESGT e HRAK EST RS Y
HKS 57T HKS 85T HKS 5872 HKS %7t
48,833,527 59,849,761 54,051,479 59,650,096
6,534,116 13,068,232 4,624,780 9,249,561
1,452,922 1,782,149 230,488 281,392
7,987,038 14,850,381 4,855,268 9,530,953
6,554,950 15,312,229 9,040,724 8,652,820
422,598 246,452 82,282 23,983
- 723 18,247 20,930
337,354 161,873 665,178 444,064
110,483 26,863 266,789 189,491
7,425,385 15,748,140 10,073,220 9,331,288
49,395,180 58,952,002 48,833,527 59,849,761

Bt
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27. SUBSIDY ON EXCHANGE FOR POST-SECONDARY STUDENTS

& FBFRINTREREE

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the scheme. In accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the scheme, the details of the
related income and expenditure of the scheme, if
any, are summarized as follows:

REBDETTIEBESIMAA KR - IIRLLE
BhatBIRIREE 25K - AR L EBET 81 Z i8R

Balance as at 1 July 2021

Net Amount Received
Grants Received

Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure
Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2022

Balance as at 1 July 2022

Net Amount Received
Grants Received

Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure
Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2023

2021 €7 A 1 B&E

B WA
[BLEH1: kS
REWHEE
ME T REWA

X i
EENRA

2022 £ 6 A 30 B&eR

2022 £ 7 A1 BEEg

B WERE
S WEsE
REHEE
FMETHREWA

X
B

2023 & 6 A 30 HAEER

AN HBR BT

Lingnan

Institute

of Further

Lingnan Education
University EEAE Total
SERAZ BEERZSR Bat
HKS %t HK$ % HK$ % T
1,588,406 205,363 1,793,769
2,899,970 100,000 2,999,970
(1,589,399) (205,485) (1,794,884)
8,365 692 9,057
1,318,936 (104,793) 1,214,143
1,344,940 - 1,344,940
1,344,940 - 1,344,940
1,562,402 100,570 1,662,972
1,562,402 100,570 1,662,972
2,838,396 100,000 2,938,396
(1,566,154) (100,871) (1,667,025)
55,236 3,637 58,873
1,327,478 2,766 1,330,244
1,259,009 - 1,259,009
1,259,009 - 1,259,009
1,630,871 103,336 1,734,207




28. MEANS-TESTED SUBSIDY ON EXCHANGE TO “BELT AND ROAD” REGIONS
FOR POST-SECONDARY STUDENTS
RARBEEFLRE T-HF—8K) 3R

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the scheme. In accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the scheme, the details of the
related income and expenditure of the scheme, if
any, are summarized as follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2021

Net Amount Received
Grants Received

Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure
Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2022

Balance as at 1 July 2022

Net Amount Received
Grants Received

Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure
Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2023

2021 %7 A1 BEE&

B WFERIEA
B2 61k
REHEE
ME T REWA

X i
SEENRAS

2022 £ 6 A 30 H&EER

2022 F£7 A1 BEEgR

EWFERIR
BB E
ROEIE
MBI REWA

X i
TEENRA

2023 &£ 6 A 30 H&ER

=GB

RECEITIL BB SINFA KM - RBILE
BhEt Bl EE K - A& BhE I 2 18R

AR BRI T -

Lingnan

Institute

of Further

Lingnan Education
University ERAE Total
BEEAE FEEEER #at
HKS$ & T HKS & 7T HK$ %t
825,778 205,809 1,031,587
1,192,623 100,000 1,292,623
(826,294) (205,931) (1,032,225)
5,376 692 6,068
371,705 (105,239) 266,466
133,000 - 133,000
133,000 - 133,000
1,064,483 100,570 1,165,053
1,064,483 100,570 1,165,053
1,657,616 100,000 1,657,616
(1,067,040) (100,871) (1,167,911)
47,562 3,637 51,199
538,138 2,766 540,904
109,375 - 109,375
109,375 - 109,375
1,493,246 103,336 1,596,582
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29. NON-MEANS-TESTED SUBSIDY ON EXCHANGE TO “BELT AND ROAD”

REGIONS FOR POST-SECONDARY STUDENTS
RARBEE LY T-F—K) IREHE

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the scheme. In accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the scheme, the details of the
related income and expenditure of the scheme, if
any, are summarized as follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2021

Net Amount Received
Grants Received

Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure
Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2022

Balance as at 1 July 2022

Net Amount Received
Grants Received

Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure
Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2023

2021 £ 7 B 1 B8R

B WFRIR
B2 E1:
REHEE
ME /T REWA

X i
EEIEN

2022 £ 6 A 30 H&EER

2022 F£7 B 1 BEEsR

B WA
S E
ROMEIE
ME T REWA

X i
EENRA

2023 &£ 6 B 30 HiER

RECETTHEBTEIMPA RIT © RIRLE
BhEt BRI E 2K - AL EBET 8 Z 18R

AR BRIt T

Lingnan

Institute

of Further

Lingnan Education
University EEAE Total
HEAE FEEEER et
HKS$ & 7T HKS & 7T HK$ % T
383,232 204,382 587,614
864,247 100,000 964,247
(383,472) (204,504) (587,976)
2,787 692 3,479
483,562 (103,812) 379,750
255,600 - 255,600
255,600 - 255,600
611,194 100,570 711,764
611,194 100,570 711,764
840,513 100,000 940,513
(612,663) (100,871) (713,534)
18,677 3,637 22,314
246,527 2,766 249,293
341,700 - 341,700
341,700 - 341,700
516,021 103,336 619,357




30. NON-MEANS-TESTED MAINLAND EXPERIENCE SCHEME

RAREBEE LREPMASERERIFTE

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the scheme. In accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the scheme, the details of the
related income and expenditure of the scheme, if
any, are summarized as follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2021

Net Amount Received
Grants Received

Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure
Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2022

Balance as at 1 July 2022

Net Amount Received
Grants Received

Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure
Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2023

2021 €7 A1 B4

B WRRIR
[BL 61k
REHEE
ME T REWA

X i
TEENRAR

2022 £ 6 A 30 B&eR

2022 £ 7 A1 BEeR

B WFERIEA
S WHEsE
REHEE
ME T REWA

X
EERA

2023 &£ 6 A 30 HiEER

REBCETTUIE BTSN A R o IR E
BhEtEIMRE K - A LB Bt 2 A8

AN HIRBn T

Lingnan

Institute

of Further

Lingnan Education
University EEAE Total
BERAZ BEERSZR Bat
HKS$ % T HK$ % T HK$ 7T
57,912 113,825 171,737
245,810 75,000 320,810
(59,902) (113,893) (173,795)
629 495 1,124
186,537 (38,398) 148,139
90,450 - 90,450
90,450 - 90,450
153,999 75,427 229,426
153,999 75,427 229,426
268,441 75,000 343,441
(154,369) (75,653) (230,022)
5,065 2,728 7,793
119,137 2,075 121,212
126,000 - 126,000
126,000 - 126,000
147,136 77,502 224,638
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31. ECF - HONG KONG OCEAN ENVIRONMENTAL PIONEER ACADEMY PROJECT
NO. EE&CA NO. 2656
IRAEE - FEEFRE #1215 B4R5E EE&CA No. 2656

The University has complied with all the requirements ARBEEITHERIEBOME GG - HRILE
of the project. In accordance with the disclosure BIEE MR ENR - tnB I EBNIER 28K
requirements of the project, the details of the related ARZ BRI

income and expenditure of the project, if any, are

summarized as follows:

HK$ %7t
Balance as at 1 July 2021 2021 €7 B 1 B#E:&R -
Net Amount Received 2 UWFIE
Grants Received [SALEE e 628,040
Interest Income FEWA 1,451
629,491
Expenditure ]
Project Costs IH B A 230,644
230,644
Balance as at 30 June 2022 2022 % 6 A 30 H&EER 398,847
Balance as at 1 July 2022 2022 F£ 7 B 1 A& 398,847
Net Amount Received 2=
Grants Received [SALE e R
Interest Income FEWA 7,067
7,067
Expenditure FH
Project Costs 15 B A 404,359
404,359
Balance as at 30 June 2023 2023 &£ 6 A 30 H#EER 1,555



32. NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REMERMGE

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

As at 1 July 2022

Changes from Financing Cash Flows
Interest Expense

Portion of Lease Payment

Addition

Other Changes
Interest paid classified as Operating
Cash Flows

As at 30 June 2023

As at 1 July 2021

Changes from Financing Cash Flows
Interest Expense

Portion of Lease Payment

Lease Addition

Other Changes

Interest paid classified as Operating
Cash Flows

As at 30 June 2022

2022 £ 7 A1 BEeR

BMERTRENED
MEZH
HoEENT

HE

Hiv 5
FINEERESREN
B

2023 £ 6 A 30 A&ER

2021 F£7 A 1 B&R

MERSRENED
MEXZH

o EEN
HERE

Hitt 25

DIAEERESREN
MEXA

2022 % 6 A 30 H&EER
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Loan-Secured
EX-BERR
HKS$ %7t

27,431,326

(a) BB RS MELMNBEZ LR

Lease Liabilities
HE8E
HKS %7t

8,863,824

232,331
(3,245,414)
24,649,773

(232,331)

27,431,326

30,268,183

27,431,326

348,492

21,156
(435,808)
8,951,140

(21,156)

27,431,326

8,863,824
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32. NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RERERMEE ()

(b) Total Cash Outflow for Leases (b) HEMBRRERE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the HENEReREFTABSRERNOT

statement of cash flows is as follows:

2023 2022
HK$ HK$
Within Operating Activites EEEE 787,335 660,270
Within Financing Activites REEE 3,245,414 435,808
4,032,749 1,096,078
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
BRI
2023 2022
HK$ %7t HK$ & T
Works contracted, but not completed IREHENERTET 299,859,000 275,536,000
The capital commitments represent the estimated AR TR IR E R R AR S M eE TR
remaining balance of the contract sum for the works BEPRHREEARARELTIHS»TRES
of the capital and AA&I projects not yet certified HIBREE o

completed at the end of the reporting period.



34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

TMTASEE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:
As at 30 June 2023

Financial Assets

TREE

Equity Investments Designated #&E AU ABE

at Fair Value through Other 3 A 2EU#EHF

Comprehensive Income ZRERRE
Financial Assets at Fair Value LA R{BESTA

through Profit or Loss BXENERERE
Financial Assets included ST AFERERSR »

in Accounts Receivable, BARRRESH

Prepayments and Deposits ~ £&&E

Time Deposits with Original ~ BEIBARN=1EA
Maturity of more than Three  fIEEATE
Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents ~ B&RBELSZEY

Financial Assets

R 2023F6 A30H

Financial Assets

BRI ANKREENT

at Fair Value at Fair Value
through Profit or through Other
Loss - Held for Comprehensive Financial Assets
Trading Income at Amortized
RAREE RAREE Cost
AKX R A MBS A
HEMEE - 2EKERZ ATRZER Total
BIEEE SREE 4B @it
HKS BT HKS BT HKS BT HKS &7t
- 5,682,852 - 5,682,852
854,280,896 - - 854,280,896
- - 31,082,404 31,082,404
- - 1,517,578,352 1,517,578,352
- - 29,175,289 29,175,289
854,280,896 5,682,852 1,577,836,045 2,437,799,793
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

M TR (8)

Financial Liabilities
ERaE

Secured Loan

Lease Liabilities

Financial Liabilities included in
Accounts Payable and Accruals

BEFER

HEAE

SFARNIRM K EREAN
TREE

Financial Liabilities at
Amortized Cost

LU SR AT 2 2
A

HK$ BT

27,431,326
30,268,183

125,721,502

183,421,011




34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

ERTHESE (8)
As at 30 June 2022

Financial Assets

TREE

Equity Investments Designated (8E&UDRERE

at Fair Value through Other 3 A 2EUHF

Comprehensive Income ZERRE
Financial Assets at Fair Value LA ABEFTA

through Profit or Loss RN ERERE
Financial Assets included SRR -

in Accounts Receivable, BARRRESH

Prepayments and Deposits ~ £RIEE

Time Deposits with Original ~ BEIBARN=EA
Maturity of more than Three ~ FIE2B73X
Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents ~ B&RESLZEEY

Financial Assets

R 2022F6 A30H

Financial Assets

at Fair Value at Fair Value
through Profit or through Other
Loss - Held for Comprehensive Financial Assets
Trading Income at Amortized
NAREE UAREE Cost
AKX R A SR A
HWEMEE - 2EKEERZ FEZER Total
BEEH SREE 4B @it
HKS BT HKS BT HKS BT HKS$ &7t
- 6,243,718 - 6,243,718
867,062,334 - - 867,062,334
- - 10,608,056 10,608,056
- - 1,246,190,587 1,246,190,587
- - 15,155,108 15,155,108
867,062,334 6,243,718 1,271,953,751 2,145,259,803
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

M TR (8)

Financial Liabilities

TRBE

Secured Loan

Lease Liabilities

Financial Liabilities included in
Accounts Payable and Accruals

BEFER

HEAE

STAESRIRRTBIRE AN
s@ans

Financial Liabilities at
Amortized Cost

LU SR AET 2 2
A

HK$ BT

27,431,326
8,863,824

95,271,503

131,566,653

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

MR EEEBEREBER

The University’s principal financial instruments
comprise secured loan, cash and time deposits, unit
trusts and equity investments. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
University’s operations. The University has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts
receivable and payable, which arise directly from
its operations. The University does not issue any
financial instruments and derivatives. In addition,
the University does not hold any derivatives.

The University is exposed to a variety of financial
risks: market risks (including interest rate risk,
currency risk, and equity price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk in the normal course of activities.
The Council reviewed and approved policies
for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below:

AXRENETELHMTAREERFER B

NEBTFN B EtES REREE - thb
TRIEMNTEZEEEERARENEEM

é c ARBHMERESREERAE TF?%B

TREEREPEEES RN R ERERR

E o AAXBUYARBITIMEBMAITETR - Bk
2o RREBWRFHERLITELA -

RKERE '@ﬂ%ﬁhﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂ‘]E%imﬂﬂ
AEMSRR(BREMEER  S¥ER K&K
*g,fﬁ¢&ﬂlgf/\>\ :.,\J—UKM //lLEjJEHKM f%
ShwaT RAZE LR UA S TR A & TR R R



35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

R EIEBEREER (48)
Market Risks
(a) Interest Rate Risk

The University’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rate relates primarily to the
University’s time deposits in banks and secured
loan from the Government. The deposits in banks
earned interests at fixed rates. Time deposits are
made for varying periods of within 3 to 12 months
depending on the cash flow requirements of the
University. The interest rate and terms of repayment
of the secured loan are disclosed in Note 21 to the
financial statements. The risk of changes in market
interest rates are not expected to have a significant
impact on the results of the University as the time
deposits are at fixed rates and other cash and bank
balances are kept in current account. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is disclosed.

Interest Rate Profile

The following table details the interest rates analysis
for evaluation of the interest rate risk:

MG EE
(a) F === B

ARBEENT SN EECRBERREAKN
BrSRITEHFR LG EROBAFER - A&
RemNBERE  SUERFR  FHETHE
=EAZE+—EARIEZE - MAERER
R R IR (B8 A BRI B R 15 3R AR Y R 21
W - NE SR REE REAMR S MIRTT
T RNERIRE - REMISHRE(LHR
ARENMBHIRRABRBEERTZE W H
FIMEBREE DT

FIEBLR

IR R DR AR R R RS2

2022

Annual Effective

Interest Rate
BRERE
% BAE
Financial Assets SREE
Fixed Rate Financial Assets EERZeRER
- Time Deposits with -FEHARKIM@EA
Original Maturity of (M5E 18(a)) 3.710% t0 5.700%
more than 3 months
(Note 18 (3))
Financial Liabilities SREE
No-gain-no-loss Rate TRTIEFZEREE
Financial Liabilities
- Secured Loan (Note 21) -FEAER (W& 21) 2.170%

Annual Effective

Interest Rate

RR&RE
HKS$ &7t % BAE HKS 7t
1,518,529,867 0.290% to 3.290% 1,247,278,643
1,518,529,867 1,247,278,643
27,431,326 1.270% 27,431,326
27,431,326 27.431,326
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MR EEBRREER (4)

Market Risks (continued)

(b) Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
University’s currency risk arises mainly from the
accounts receivable and payable, time deposits,
unit trust and equity investments denominated in
foreign currencies. The management conducted
periodical review of the currency risk exposure and
would consider currency hedging should the need
arise.

Significant carrying amounts of the University’s
financial liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at 30 June were analysed in the
table below:

assets and

Financial Assets

miZER (1)
(b) B\

TR TANDABEIRKNE D REREZI
EEXRSBCMKBMELN AR SEER
%o AXZNEEER T ERNING U N
FERIRRT - EBFAR - BEFEET MERR
& BERETHREMEAZINERRIZE - F
ERAIEREBENRS -

K6 A30RKE  RREXRNINESREE M
BESTITIR

Financial Liabilities

SREE =
2023 2022 2023 2022
Currency B HK$'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
BEHBT BEE#BT BEEBT BEBT
United States Dollar E 1.7 14 1.0 1.0
1.7 14 1.0 1.0

Sensitivity analysis on fluctuation of foreign
currencies is not disclosed due to the HK-US
dollar peg and
foreign currencies, the Council anticipated that the
fluctuation in other foreign currencies will have no
significant impact on the financial position of the

insignificant holding on other

University.

M ETTESE T - MEMINEEERBE
MR AERD - EFSTEMIMNEE RN B E
RRENFBARRNBERTE - @ABRAE
fb SNERE RN B BURE DA



35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MR EEBFREER (4)

Market Risks (continued)

(c) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of change
in equity market prices. The University is exposed
to equity price risk through its unit trusts and
equity investments which represents the potential
loss of the investments the University might suffer
through holding market position in the face of
price movement. The Investment Sub-committee
performs periodic evaluation of the investment
portfolio in order to minimize the risk associated
with the investments whilst continuing to follow the
investment objectives.

As at 30 June 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase of 10% in these investment’s fair value,
with all other variables held constant, would increase
the University’s surplus by HK$85.4 million (2022:
decrease deficit by HK$86.7 million).

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other
party by failing to discharge an obligation. The
University’s exposures to credit risk is primary
attributed to its accounts receivable, time deposits
and cash and bank balances, arise from default of
the counterparty, with the maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amount of these financial assets
at the end of the reporting period. Time deposits
and bank balances are placed in various reputable
financial institutions and there is no concentration
of credit risk. Accounts receivable include amounts
receivable from students, course-collaborative
partners, government agencies and others. The
majority of the students will settle the fees payable
when they become due or after the receipt of the
government grants, loans and/or the University’s
bursaries, credit risk of which is minimal. The
ageing analysis of debtors is prepared periodically
for management review to minimize the credit risk.

iz (&)
(c) RrkE(BE Rk

SR TENAEEBERETSEREZSHM
KENFTE AR R B SEAERER - AXEFRHE
B EEES MEMERED S LIEER
Ry - BAERKEM S| BEEREE - ]E
NMEZEeeE M HIRERES  BIEKRER
o N HEEIRPEIRE B IR o

20236 A30H  BRIFEMNKRERAAE
BEE10%  HMAETE - AREBNBHE
2 108,540 & /8 7T (2022 : & 4t 8l 4 8,670
EBAT) °

EE R
HRETRTAEF S TEITEEMBERMS
MIEBERNAR - AEERR - KEEEH
EFERBRTIERERUIRR - EBFR - UK
He MRTTHS - RRTIARRZ 5 E TR S
B MxARREBEEERNBREEA SR
BEMNKREER - EMFRMRITESRD BITF
HRNZMBEEZN e REE - EERRIL T
S - BURERBRSELE  AWRERH K
FFEBFI R E AL ERR - KB BEENEE
NEEE W AT - RBIBTEB S - B/
FIABHEERAEMNBERA - FERBREK
Do RUSRTREDITREEHRHERER
BIASREE SRR -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MR EEBRREER (4)

Credit Risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
University’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end
staging classification. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 30 June 2023

FEUR BRSR *

Accounts Receivable*

Financial Assets Included in Other 3t A E{hFEURBESL - TA(T
Receivable, Prepayments and RERZEHNEmEE
Deposits
- Normal** -EE
- Doubtful** - RE*

FRHARR=@EA

Time Deposits with Original

Maturity of more than Three HEHTFERK
Months
Not Yet Past Due RiB A

Cash and Cash Equivalents RENKREEEY
Not Yet Past Due RiBHf

EERE (&)

R A K 5 K P ER B 77
TRARBEERR ZEREREZEKNEER
% ZEREZRIFBMER (BRIFEMER
BARETBERALE AR ER) RFER

FEEREIDERIHIE - 2N BEAVBEE
ZBREAR(E -

7202396 A30H

Lifetime ECLs

2-month ECLs 2 HITEHA
12 {8 A FEEFBE
EEEE Simplified

Stage 1 Approach Total

BEER 1 fifL @t

HKS$ & T HKS$ &7t HK$ &7

- 30,723,978 30,723,978

4,345,610 - 4,345,610

1,517,578,352 - 1,517,578,352

29,175,289 - 29,175,289



35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MR EEBFREER (4)

Credit Risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 30 June 2022

Accounts Receivable* FEURBRFR *

Financial Assets Included in Other s+ A EfFEURBRRR - TB{T
Receivable, Prepayments and RARZENEmMEE

Deposits
- Normal** -EE
- Doubtful* - RER

Time Deposits with Original REFERAR=@EA
Maturity of more than Three HIE BRTZ R
Months
Not Yet Past Due RiBHA

Cash and Cash Equivalents RekESZEEY
Not Yet Past Due RiBHA

* For accounts receivable to which the University applies
the simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 17.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

EERE (&)

RAEERFRERE S ()

202246 A30H

Lifetime ECLs

2-month ECLs 2 HITEHA
12 {8 A a8 EEEBE
EEEE Simplified
Stage 1 Approach

PEER 1 fa{LE

HKS &7t HK$ & T

- 12,430,011

2,165,229 -

1,246,190,587 -

15,155,108 -

Total
R
HKS %7t

12,430,011

2,165,229

1,246,190,587

15,155,108

Y RBZBRUSRRERGCREL  ERBYEERE 2

AR 17 R -

HEIAEMBEIE BNRERREZEBEEN
FEAERGAILER] BUFeREERBHR
WEERET B AT RRENEERREEAE
me BRI SRMEENEEEREES [RER]
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MEREEEBERBUEE (8)
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available
in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities as they fall due. The University’s objective
is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through use of secured loan
for its operations and development. The University’s
investments are kept sufficiently liquid and the liquid
assets are maintained at a level which is considered
by the management to be adequate to meet the
needs of operations and the expected cash outflow
requirement. The liquidity of the University is closely
monitored by the Council on an ongoing basis.

The financial liabilities as at 30 June, based on the
contracted undiscounted cash flows are analysed
into relevant maturity time bands based upon their
contractual maturity dates in the table below:

In less than One Year ER—F

In more than One Year but not more than Two ER—FEBER_-F

Years
In more than Two Years but not more than
Three Years

In more than Three Years but not more than ER=ZFEERIFE

Four Years
In more than Four Years but not more than
Five Years
In more than Five Years RREF

MENE R R

TRHBEIHE - RETRELFEEBKS
@lﬂ’]ﬂ BVAEREER - KAKEF %EEAE
’E?ﬁéis_i“’lii;)% HEREEBERNE

RRAZHEEER=F

RANFEERESF

- MM & BT
éfﬁﬁ;@%’]m@]@i '

Sy $K-—%E’\J¢x
BEEETLRDEEN
» Max/KF R AR B 2 @A MR
HMESRENFERE RNESTHETER

AREBRIRESREME -
MREeA3HNERABUNALYKRIIRESRSE
WEWIZAFEEEHESHTOT ¢
2023 2022
HK$ &t HK$ &t
131,976,081 96,618,738
14,147,497 1,597,761
14,038,367 8,809,757
13,890,186 8,762,554
11,352,295 8,675,459
- 8,321,661
185,404,426 132,785,930




36. FAIR VALUE
AREE

As at 30 June 2023, the carrying amounts of
the University’s financial assets and liabilities
approximated to their fair values due to their short
term repayment nature, except for investments and
secured loan repayable after one year.

The fair value of the secured loan repayable after
one year has been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The University’s
own non-performance risk for the secured loan
repayable after one year as at 30 June 2023 was
assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amount
of the University’s secured loan repayable after one
year approximated to its fair value.

Investments

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value
hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted price in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data.

BRIGEIIN B2 —FREENERIN - K
RENSREENABEBERNEHEFTHEE -
HERMER2023F 6 A30HRHEE QA EE
& o

EER —FREEBNERNAABERLRE
EEIEEEZ\:E/ML/‘/EH' CFIRERBEEER - EE

frAeR TEIHA R ARE A T A - 202346
H 30 A XRERXFEBREEF —FERE
BNEFNTETRBREN A TEKN « K
ERNEER s —FREENEFRABERLAR
SEBERES -

/DH

UAREBEFESRIERAEBED RHD
MranT :

CHEREEXBERNIERTIS AN Z R

FoH BRTERPFABESHREZIN &
EsBE B AERUEE (BITISHRE)skHE
2% (B EROTE ) BER -

F= - BEMARBZBABELRAHERETS
{f*ﬂ—_l—T/\ / %
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36. FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)
AFEE (8)

Investments (continued)

As at 30 June 2023 20236 A30H

Financial Assets at Fair Value B\A A BEH AKZRE

through Profit or Loss tREE
Listed Equity Investments I hRERRE
Listed Investment Funds ITmEERE

Unlisted Investment Funds ELTEERE

Equity Investments EERUQAEERE
Designated at Fair FAZERER
Value through Other ZRERRE

Comprehensive Income

Unlisted Equity Investments 3 EH#E3RE

As at 30 June 2022 202256 B30 A

Financial Assets at Fair Value A2 AEBEF AKZRE

through Profit or Loss tREE
Listed Equity Investments THERKRE
Listed Investment Funds THESRE

Unlisted Investment Funds FLTESERE

Equity Investments EERUAREE
Designated at Fair FAZHEKREEK
Value through Other ZRERRE

Comprehensive Income

Unlisted Equity Investments ~ JF E iR RE

92

’E (@)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5§ £ £=8 @3t
HKS &t HKS &7t HKS &t HK$ BT
21,640,851 - - 21,640,851
86,904,780 - - 86,904,780
- 745,735,265 - 745,735,265
- - 5,682,852 5,682,852
108,545,631 745,735,265 5,682,852 859,963,748
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ B B @it
HKS T HKS T HKS BT HKS 7t
21,198,665 - - 21,198,665
102,275,920 - - 102,275,920
- 743,587,749 - 743,587,749
- - 6,243,718 6,243,718
123,474,585 743,587,749 6,243,718 873,306,052




36. FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)
AsEE ()

Investments (continued)

There was no transfer between Level 1, Level 2
and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the
reporting period.

The level 3 financial instrument includes the
investmentinalimited partnership whichis nottraded
in active markets. Without an observable market
data, it is difficult to analyse a range of significant
unobservable input of the financial instrument under
Level 3 of which its fair value is estimated on the
basis of the investee’s financial position and results
as well as is determined by using going concern
asset-based as valuation technique.

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BhR5%

All transactions relating to purchases of goods
and services, capital projects as well as donations
involving organizations in which members of the
University’s Council may have an interest are
conducted during the normal course of business
and in accordance with the University’s financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures.

All members serve the University Council without
remuneration. Those members who are also
employees of the University received the aggregate
remunerations from their employment contracts as
follows:

Council Member Compensation REERE/E
Salaries * E
Other Employee Benefits * Hit{gERH *

* This sum has been included in the “Staff Costs and
Benefits” under the Expenditure heading in Note 11.

RE (&)
HIARABEDEHIAE
A2 eI S o

FE_RRE=

FZELEMITAEVEN I ERTSABE
5E’<§ ERRE BREFem T RELEHEET
HEK EEKTTHT\%U\TEE’J%B.%M
T REQALEBERMKEHFIRE A RN BN
REBRERELARELE REEEMRMNGE
KitmEE °

PIEBERBEER - RE - E21RE KB
WRREREGK B K HEZE AT B FZEEER
MEE X5  SAEERKEFELDIRRA
SRR L IEERBIEFHET -

FIEREGKEBHERAREGKE HH K
BUE3RE - —EREG K B Rt X2
EE - MPIREEE & XTI A RN e A2 %8
=2

2023 2022

HK$ %7t HK$ & 7T
17,126,662 19,512,606
4,470,491 4,846,304
21,597,153 24,358,910

< EEFCETHIIAME 110 [ 08 B HMER ] 1
BET -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

RESRZ (&)

Other than the employment contracts mentioned
above, the University has not entered into any
contract of significance for the provision of goods
and services with any Council member during the
year.

38. TAXATION
HHIE

The University is an approved charitable institution
which is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax
under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance
(Cap. 112).

39. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
EEEE =

Certain comparative financial information has been
reclassified to conform with the current year’s
presentation.

BT LEMEE AL RERAFEAAIRE
B IRE g AK B 55T R m A AR H
EPN=F O

ARBT—Fiiz 2 EWE - RIBFEHS
Gl (FRAPIFE112F ) B 8B IKRER RIS
PiIA -

ETHERFEENNE - WHEAFEMIR
HHmE

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMTRR

The financial statements were approved and
authorized for issue by the Council on 30 October
2023.

WEEN2023F 10 A30 B E RIS T
REFFEIRE ©
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